
 

WORK SESSION 

November 14, 2022 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants. 

 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Minutes. 

a. Minutes of the October 17th Regular Meeting, October 31st Work Session and 
October 31st Special Called Meeting. 

4. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Erica Potts, Interim HR Director, present to provide an update on the County's 
compliance to the Fair Standards Labor Act and the complaint and grievance 
procedures. 

b. William Wright, representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc.  present to continue discussing 
an issue of unfair practices with the ARPA funding. 

5. Zoning. 

a. Vicente S. Sontay, owner and Lanier Engineering, Inc., applicant (22-074) request 
Special Approval to construct a Religious Institution with cemetery (Church) in a R-2 
(Single-Family Residential District). The parcel is a 5.0-acre vacant parcel. The 
property is located at the 1416 Nelms Rd. The Planning Commission recommends 
approval.  Angel Gray, Planning Manager, will address.  The Public Hearing and 
Action are scheduled for November 21, 2022. 

1



b. Ivy RV Park, LLC, owner and Joseph Jackson, applicant (22-077) request Special 
Approval to construct a Recreational Vehicle Park in a C-8 (Commercial Recreation 
District). The parcel is a 4.195-acre vacant parcel. The property is located at the  
3420 Sylvester Rd. The Planning Commission recommends approval.  Angel Gray, 
Planning Manager will address.  The Public Hearing and Action are scheduled for 
November 21, 2022.   

6. Additional Business. 

a. Discussion of proposed renaming of the Dougherty County Judicial Building.   
Judge Willie Lockette and Chairman Christopher Cohilas will address. 

b. Continued discussion of the zoning variance approval process.  County Attorney  
Alex Shalishali and Director of Planning and Development Services Paul Forgey are 
present to address concerns. 

7. Board Appointments. 

a. County Clerk Jawahn Ware will address. Pages for each board are indicated below.  

Joint Board of Adjustments & Appeals – Two (2) joint appointments with a three-
year term ending October 1, 2025.  Incumbent Arwena Jones desires reappointment. 
No new applicants.  There is one vacancy.  All joint appointments must be ratified by 
the City of Albany.  See page 44. 

Air Conditioning, Heating, & Ventilation Board – Four (4) appointments: one (1) 
County, two (2) joint, and one (1) rotational, all with a one-year term ending 
December 31, 2023.  Incumbents Thomas Driggers (joint), Quianna Lavant (County), 
Clint Newsome (joint) and Clifford Tolbert (rotational) desire reappointment.  No new 
applicants.  All joint appointments must be ratified by the City of Albany.  
See page 46. 

Citizens Transportation Committee – Two (2) appointments with a three–year 
term ending December 31, 2025.  Incumbent Sonja Johnson desires 
reappointment.  Dr. Surendra Pandey relocated outside of Dougherty County.  No 
new applicants.  There is one vacancy.  See page 48. 

Economic Development Committee – Three (3) appointments with a two–year 
term ending December 31, 2024.  Incumbents Lawrence Knighton and Matt Reed 
desire reappointment.  Two new applicants: Emmett Griswold and John Inman 
IV.  There is one vacancy.  See page 50. 

Electrical Board – Five (5) appointments: one (1) County appointment for a Master 
Electrician, two (2) joint appointments for an Electrical Supplier, one (1) joint 
appointment for a Professional Engineer and one (1) appointment for a joint citizen 
member, all with a one-year term ending December 31, 2023.  Incumbent  
Sanford Hillsman (joint citizen member) desires reappointment.  No new 
applicants.  There are four vacancies.  All joint appointments must be ratified by the 
City of Albany.   See page 58. 

  

2



Fire Code Board of Appeals – Four (4) County appointments with a three-year term 
ending December 31, 2025.  Incumbent Rosa Malone desires reappointment.  There 
was no response from incumbents Zell Scott and Charles Mitchell.  Incumbent  
Bruce Campbell does not desire reappointment.  No new applicants.  There are three 
vacancies. See page 59. 

Flood Plain Management Review Board – Two (2) County appointments with a 
three-year unexpired term ending December 31, 2024.  No new applicants.  There 
are two vacancies.  See page 61. 

Gas Board – Three (3) appointments: one (1) County, one (1) joint and one (1) 
rotational with a one-year term ending December 31, 2023.  Incumbents  
Sanford Hillsman (county) and Rhett Parker (joint) desire reappointment.  No new 
applicants. There is one vacancy.  All joint appointments must be ratified by the City 
of Albany.  See page 62. 

Golden Triangle RC & D Council – Two (2) appointments with a two-year term 
ending December 31, 2024.  Incumbent Doug Wilson desires reappointment.  
J. Douglas Porter relocated outside of Dougherty County.  No new applicants.  There 
is one vacancy.  See page 64. 

Dougherty County Health Department- One (1) appointment with a six-year term 
ending December 31, 2028.  Incumbent Dr. Charles King Jr. desires 
reappointment.  No new applicants.  See page 66. 

Historic Preservation Commission– Four (4) appointments with a two-year term 
ending December 31, 2024.  Incumbents Angela Cain Jones, Quianna Lavant and 
Kenneth Loudenbarger desire reappointment.  There is one vacancy.  One new 
applicant: Will Davis. See page 68. 

Albany/Dougherty Hospital Authority – Two (2) appointments with a five-year 
term ending December 31, 2027.  Incumbents Dorothy Hubbard and Sharon “Nyota” 
Tucker desire reappointment.  One new applicant: Sheri Barlow.  See page 73. 

Keep Albany-Dougherty Beautiful – Six (6) appointments: five (5) with a three-
year term ending December 31, 2025, and one (1) three-year unexpired term ending 
December 31, 2024.  Incumbent J.D. Sumner, Lew Culpepper and Jay Smith desire 
reappointment.  Incumbent Dennis Barthelemy and Lisa Harrell do not desire 
reappointment.  KADB recommends the appointment of Jerry Goodman to replace 
Bryant Harden and fill an unexpired three-year term ending December 31, 
2024.  KADB recommends the appointment of Tomekia Cooper to replace  
Lisa Harrel and fill a three-year term ending December 31, 2025.  KADB will 
advertise for one vacancy. See page 78. 

Library Board – Three (3) appointments with a three-year term ending December 
31, 2025. Incumbents Dr. Brenda Hodges Tiller and Will Davis desire reappointment. 
Three new applicants: Haryl Dabney, Genevieve Marcus and Joseph Stubbs.   
See page 84. 

  

3



Planning Commission – Three (3) appointments with a three-year term ending 
December 31, 2025.   Incumbents Billy Merritt, Art Brown and  
Jimmy Hall Jr. desire reappointment.   No new applicants. See page 99. 

Plumbing Board - Three (3) appointments with a one-year term ending December 
31, 2023.  Two (2) County appointments must be a Master Plumber and one (1) 
appointment represents a citizen member.  Incumbents Lee Eppley (County, Master 
Plumber), Glenn Tyler Harris (Citizen Member) and Rhett Parker (County Master 
Plumber) desire reappointment.  No new applicants. See page 101. 

Retirement Fund Committee – Two (2) appointments with a four-year term ending 
December 31, 2026, one must be a retiree representative and one must be a citizen 
appointee. Incumbent Greg Rowe (retiree representative) desires reappointment. No 
new applicants. There is one vacancy. Commission Chairman makes all 
appointments.   See page 103. 

Southwest Georgia Community Action Council - One (1) appointment with a one-
year term ending December 31, 2023.  Incumbent Glenn Tyler Harris desires 
reappointment.  One new applicant: Haryl Dabney:  See page 105. 

Southwest Georgia Housing Task Force - One (1) appointment with a one-year 
term ending December 31, 2023.  Incumbent Sonya Johnson desires 
reappointment. No new applicants.  See page 109. 

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission - Three (3) appointments: one (1) 
County, one (1) Chairman designee (appointee must be a Commissioner) and one 
(1) joint with a one-year term ending December 31, 2023.  Incumbents Raymond 
Breaux (County) and Anthony Jones (Chairman designee desire 
reappointment.  Casawn-L Yheyeis resigned from the Commission.  No new 
applicants.  The Chairman will appoint his designee.  There is one vacancy.   
See page 111. 

Tax Assessors Board– One (1) appointment with a three-year term ending 
December 31, 2025. Incumbent William Ashberry desires reappointment. One new 
applicant: Rhonda Stewart.  See page 113. 

Voter Registration and Elections– One (1) appointment with a two-year term 
ending December 31, 2024.  Incumbent Frederick Williams desires 
reappointment.  Two new applicants: Dr. Jacob Clawson and  
Alvin “Al” Hatcher.  See page 119. 

8. Updates from the County Administrator. 

9. Updates from the County Attorney. 

10. Updates from the County Commission. 

11. Adjourn. 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, 
or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-
431-2121 promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

4



 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

October 17, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on October 17, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:05 a.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray,  

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator 

Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney  

Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and representatives of 

the media participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook 

page and the government public access channel.   

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, the Chairman called for approval of the minutes 

of the September 26th Work Session and September 26th Special Called Meeting.  

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the minutes 

were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized citizen Arthur K. Williams who presented his concern on asking the 

Commission to address issues with the courts and the Sheriff.  The concern was referencing the 

security ingress and egress for citizens.  He mentioned that he was not pleased that citizens have 

to remove their belts to enter the courthouse.  The second concern was about why the local Elks 

Lodge #633, which is a  501c3, in Dougherty County had to pay property taxes.  Throughout the 

state, all other lodges are exempt and he requested that the Commission review this.  The 

Chairman directed Attorney Shalishali to work with the Board of Assessors to determine why 

the organization was denied exemption.  Commissioner Edwards requested that the Sheriff’s 

Office front staff consider more effective public relations alternatives and look at examples of 

how other entities provide security services.  Commissioner Edwards also asked Attorney 

Shalishali to determine from a legal perspective if another entity could provide the security 

service.  Chairman Cohilas said that it is best to give the Sheriff the professional courtesy to 

address.  

 

The Chairman recognized citizen Calvin Hill who echoed the same sentiments regarding 

removing belts to enter the courthouse.  He also shared a risk management concern that occurred 

in the City of Albany.  He wanted to express the issue to the County Commission about a flooding 

concern.  Chairman Cohilas asked Mr. McCoy to contact the City Manager regarding the concern 

received. 

 

5

Item 3a.



 

 

The Chairman opened the public hearing for Bryan  & Cynthia Wingate; owner and applicant 

(22-068) request to rezone 9.91 acres from AG (Agricultural District) to R-2 (Single Family 

Residential District). The rezoning would allow for the owners to subdivide portions of the 

property to sell to the adjacent property owners.  The property currently holds two zoning 

designations R-2 and AG. The property is located at 3520 Thomas Road. The Planning 

Commission recommended approval. Angel Gray, Planning Manager, addressed.  There being 

no one present to speak in favor or against the proposed matter, the Chairman closed the public 

hearing. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase one John Deere 6110M Cab Tractor from state 

contract vendor Deere & Company (Cary, NC) for Solid Waste in the amount of $89,222.98.  

Funding is budgeted in the Solid Waste Enterprise Fund.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and 

execution of the contract to accept the bid for the 2021 LMIG Resurfacing and Safety Action Plan 

from the lowest responsive and responsible vendor meeting specifications, Oxford Construction 

Company (Albany, GA) in the amount of $3,013,073.10 subject to execution by the County 

Administrator.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII ($425,000), TSPLOST ($2,149,250), 2021 

LMIG ($380,125) and 2021 LMIG SAP ($42,000). 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion.  Under 

discussion, Mr. Mathis confirmed that Spurlock St. will be considered in future listing.  There 

being no further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.  Resolution 22- 046 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND 

EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT TO ACCEPT THE BID FOR THE 

2021 LMIG RESURFACING AND SAFETY ACTION PLAN FROM THE 

LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE VENDOR MEETING 

SPECIFICATIONS, OXFORD CONSTRUCTION COMPANY; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance of the 

revised Public Works Park Policy as recommended by the Recreation Committee effective  

November 1, 2022. 

 

6

Item 3a.



 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 22-047 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE 

REVISED PUBLIC WORKS PARK POLICY AS RECOMMENDED BY 

THE RECREATION COMMITTEE; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR 

PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for the zoning consideration for Bryan & Cynthia Wingate; owner and 

applicant (22-068) request to rezone 9.91 acres from AG (Agricultural District) to R-2 (Single 

Family Residential District). The rezoning would allow for the owners to subdivide portions of 

the property to sell to the adjacent property owners.  The property currently holds two zoning 

designations R-2 and AG. The property is located at 3520 Thomas Road.  The Planning 

Commission recommended approval. 

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gaines, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the proposed County's response to the Mayor’s letter 

dated March 15, 2022 relative to the former National Guard Armory property.  County 

Administrator Michael McCoy and County Attorney Alex Shalishali addressed.  Commissioner 

Johnson confirmed that the letter conforms with the Recreation Committee's recommendation.  

County Clerk Jawahn Ware confirmed that it appeared to be a unanimous consensus from the 

Board to proceed with the letter.  The Chairman shared that he will work with Attorney Shalishali 

to redraft the letter and recirculate it with the Board for review and possible approval at the next 

meeting.  County members provided feedback on revisions.   

 

Mr. McCoy gave an update on his recent meeting with the Public Works staff.  Upon review of 

the payroll records, it was found that the County is in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards 

Act (FLSA) and all employees have been paid correctly.  Commissioner Edwards shared that he 

would like a process that will prevent “silent” retaliation against staff.  He also wanted an effective 

way for employees to voice their complaints addressed.  Chairman Cohilas shared that the County 

has a process and policies in place which Mr. McCoy confirmed.  Chairman Cohilas also said it 

is best to redirect staff to Human Resources and provide an update to Mr. McCoy regarding 

complaints received from a policy perspective.  He asked Mr. McCoy to obtain a report from 

Human Resources on what is available to employees and re-educate employees on the process. 

 

Commissioner Jones asked that the Board discuss in a Work Session how amending variances 

should be addressed.  He shared that he felt that the problem is outdated ordinances.  

7

Item 3a.



 

 

Commissioner Jones clarified that he wanted directions on how to move forward with this request.  

Commissioner Johnson recapped for the Chairman the discussion from last week due to his 

absence.  After clarification, Chairman Cohilas directed Attorney Shalishali and Mr. McCoy to 

provide an updated discussion at the next Work Session.  Commissioner Gaines announced the 

passing of activist Charles Sherrod.  Chairman Cohilas confirmed that a resolution [proclamation] 

can be drafted for Mr. Sherrod.  Commissioner Gray provided updates from the Health Board 

meeting and shared that Covid numbers have been reduced in our community.  As a result, he 

wanted to see if Mr. McCoy could meet with the City of Albany to see if they agreed on being 

less restrictive and removing the partitions and seat covers.  It was a unanimous consensus from 

the Board that the administration staff will return to the dais.  

 

County Administrator Michael McCoy reminded the Board that there will be no Commission 

meeting on Monday, October 24, 2022.  The next meeting will be a Work Session on Monday, 

October 31, 2022 in Room 100. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

11:15 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

8

Item 3a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

October 31, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on October 31, 2022.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 am.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines,  

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator 

Michael McCoy, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  

Commissioner Russell Gray participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  The public and 

representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the 

County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.   

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes of the October 3rd Regular Meeting 

and the October 10th Work Session. 

 

The Chairman recognized Consultant Phil Sutton to update the Commission on the Homestead 

Option Sales Tax (HOST).  Mr. Sutton discussed what happens if LOST negotiations are not 

successful.  He shared that the new distribution form must be submitted to the Department of 

Revenue no later than December 30, 2022.  He added that the City and County would lose 

$18,297,682 if LOST is not negotiated.  He provided two options which were to increase the 

millage rate or implement a HOST.  The HOST is a 1% sales tax and the primary purpose of it 

is to provide relief on homestead exempt properties.  The secondary purpose is for capital 

expenditures (up to 20%) and there is no requirement to share revenue with the City under most 

circumstances.  He shared that HOST has been adopted by Dekalb County and Rockdale 

County.  A comparison between LOST and HOST was done with an overview of the tasks and 

timeline for implementation.  It was noted that a referendum will be required and if successful, 

collections would not be until April 2024.  He added that this would cause the County to be 

without sales tax collections for 15 months. 

 

Other considerations pertaining to an alternative solution were shared. A lengthy discussion 

ensued.  It was noted by Mr. Sutton that you cannot implement a HOST if a LOST or ELOST 

is in place.  The consultant recommended not considering HOST unless “LOST is lost.” 

Attorney Shalishali will provide legal guidance if the County should continue with the LOST 

process or meetings.   

 

Recess was from 11:28 am- 11:36 am. 

 

The Chairman recognized James Morgan, County Extension Coordinator, to update the 

Commission with the quarterly report.  Mr. Morgan provided a handout of the 3rd quarter report 

and gave an update on filling vacancies.  Upon the request of Commissioner Jones, an update 

on a recent contest at the fair was shared.  

 

9

Item 3a.



The Chairman recognized William Wright, representative for AFRAM Tech, Inc. to discuss an 

issue of unfair practices with  ARPA funding.  Mr. Wright started his presentation by sharing 

information to help the Commission with potential mediation or arbitration for LOST.  He 

shared concerns in regards to the County collecting money but the population is being lost.  He 

will bring more information, including details about the Taft-Hartley Act, to the Commission.  

 

The Chairman recognized Alex Shalishali, County Attorney and Paul Forgey, Director of 

Planning and Development Services to provide an update on the "Variance Policy” for Zoning 

Considerations and the ability of amendment by the Dougherty County Board of 

Commissioners.  Attorney Shalishali provided an overview of the current ordinance and shared 

that the governing body has full control of the zoning ordinance which they can amend.  

Practical considerations were provided.  He added that most variances are noncontroversial.  If 

the Board of Commissioners decided to start adjudicating requests, training will be required.  

He shared that most areas in the state delegate the variance process to a separate board such as 

the Planning Commission to handle it.  After a recap by the Chairman, he suggested that an 

apprisal to the County Commission be provided in the motion regarding future decisions.  

Commissioner Jones requested education for homeowners be provided moving forward.  

Chairman Cohilas would like to digest the request of Commissioner Jones and have a 

substantive discussion at the next Work Session.  Commissioner Edwards clarified that he is 

only concerned about an update on variances that the County Board of Commissioners denied. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to accept the Memorandum of Agreement with Albany 

Technical College on behalf of the Dougherty County Sheriff's Office authorizing assistance to 

each other during a local emergency.  Chief Deputy Terron Hayes addressed.  Chief Hayes 

recommended approval and said this will allow them to respond in extenuating circumstances.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to accept the proposal from the City of Albany for 

improvements to the basketball courts at Robert Cross Park in the amount of $55,151.22.  This 

request for maintenance and improvements to the park is consistent with the approved Service 

Delivery Strategy for Recreation.  Funding is available in the FY 23 American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) Spending Plan.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Public Works 

Director Chuck Mathis was present.  Mr. McCoy recommended approval after finding out that 

facilities are not up to par.  Upon a question by Commissioner Johnson, Mr. McCoy shared that 

our park's funding is very limited.  He also provided an update on the approximate balance of 

the ARPA funding and will provide details of expenditures at a future meeting.  Commissioner 

Jones shared his concerns about funding not being made available for Putney Park via ARPA.  

Mr. Mathis and Mr. McCoy addressed by sharing with Commissioner Jones that the initial 

presentation was for use of SPLOST and contingency funds [for Putney Park]; and it was 

recently discovered that there is funding available in ARPA that could be directed to this current 

project.  Chairman Cohilas asked that an update be provided at the next Work Session.  The 

Chairman also stressed that a presentation can be provided to the local legislation and make a 

funding request.  Commissioner Johnson reminded the Board that our recreation vendor is the 

City of Albany and shared that the best process is to have the City of Albany view  

Putney Park and make a presentation to the Recreation Committee with input from 

Commissioner Jones.  Commissioner Jones also shared that consultant Ron Huffman did 

provide a park concept and Commissioner Johnson reminded the Board of grants denied. 

10

Item 3a.



 

The Chairman called for a discussion to exercise the renewal option from December 4, 2022 to  

December 3, 2023 with an adjustment to the hourly rates based on the CPI-U Base Price 

Adjustment Calculation with Tetra Tech.  The option is for the Professional Debris Monitoring 

Services for Disasters and Financial Recovery.  County Administrator Michael McCoy 

addressed. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to declare the listed vehicle as surplus and authorize the 

disposal of or sale of same via an online auction.  County Administrator Michael McCoy 

addressed.  Mr. McCoy confirmed the Chairman’s recap of the need to proceed and for 

Commissioner Johnson that we only pay when services are utilized.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion to declare the listed vehicle as surplus and authorize the 

disposal of or sale of the same via an online auction.  County Administrator Michael McCoy 

addressed.  Mr. McCoy recommended approval. 

 

Commissioner Newsome thanked former Assistant County Administrator  Scott Addison, in 

his absence, for his service and wished him the best in his future endeavors.  Commissioner 

Edwards expressed how the movement for recreation has occurred, especially for children 

within the community.  He expressed that this is a reason why discussions are being done to 

support efforts.  Commissioner Johnson recognized the City of Albany counter partners who 

were present. 

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission entered into a Special Called 

Meeting at 12:37 p.m. 

 
 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

11

Item 3a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

October 31, 2022 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting in Room 100 of the 

Albany-Dougherty Government Center on October 31, 2022 immediately following the Work 

Session.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to order at  

12:37 p.m.  Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Clinton Johnson, 

Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator  

Michael McCoy, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  

Commissioner Russell Gray participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  The public and 

representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the 

County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration the recommendation from the County Attorney to enter 

into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing real estate and then to adjourn. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion passed unanimously. 

 

There being no further discussion, the Board entered into Executive Session at 12:37 p.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

12

Item 3a.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: November 3, 2022 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #22-074 Special Approval (1416 Nelms Road) 

 
Vicente S. Sontay (22-074) has submitted an application to the Albany Dougherty 
Planning Commission requesting Special Approval to construct a Religious Institution 
with cemetery (Church) in a R-2 (Single-Family Residential District). The parcel is a 
5.0-acre vacant parcel. The property is located at the 1416 Nelms Rd 
(00174/00001/024). The property owner is Vicente Santos Sontay; the applicant is 
Lanier Engineering, INC. (District 6) 
 
Art Brown offered a motion to approve the request for Special Approval to construct a 
Religious Institution with cemetery at the property located at 1416 Nelms Rd.; seconded 
by Jimmy Hall the motion carried 9-0 with the following votes:  
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum  
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Yes 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes  
Aaron Johnson  Yes 
Charles Ochie  Yes 
Helen Young   Yes 
Willie Simmons   Yes 
 
 

13

Item 5a.



14

Item 5a.



15

Item 5a.



16

Item 5a.



17

Item 5a.



18

Item 5a.



19

Item 5a.



20

Item 5a.



21

Item 5a.



22

Item 5a.



23

Item 5a.



24

Item 5a.



25

Item 5a.



26

Item 5a.



 

P L A N N I N G  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S E R V I C E S  
 

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date: November 3, 2022 
 
To: The Board of County Commissioners 
 
From: Albany Dougherty Planning Commission 
 
Subject: #22-077 Special Approval (3420 Sylvester Road) 

 
Ivy RV Park, LLC (22-077) has submitted an application to the Albany Dougherty 
Planning Commission requesting Special Approval to construct a Recreational Vehicle 
Park in a C-8 (Commercial Recreation District). The parcel is a 4.195-acre vacant 
parcel. The property is located at the 3420 Sylvester Rd (087-1/0000/049). The 
property owner is Ivy RV Park, LLC; the applicant is Joseph Jackson. (District 6) 
 
Helen Young offered a motion to approve the request for Special Approval to construct a 
Recreational Vehicle Park at the property located at 3420 Sylvester Rd.; seconded by Art 
Brown the motion carried 9-0 with the following votes:  
 
William Geer   Tie or Quorum  
Billy Merritt   Yes 
Art Brown   Yes 
Jimmy Hall   Yes 
Sanford Hillsman  Yes 
Yvonne Jackson  Yes  
Aaron Johnson  Yes 
Charles Ochie  Yes 
Helen Young   Yes 
Willie Simmons   Yes 
 
 

27

Item 5b.



28

Item 5b.



29

Item 5b.



30

Item 5b.



31

Item 5b.



32

Item 5b.



33

Item 5b.



34

Item 5b.



35

Item 5b.



36

Item 5b.



37

Item 5b.



38

Item 5b.



39

Item 5b.



40

Item 5b.



41

Item 5b.



42

Item 5b.



43

Item 5b.



44

Item 7a.



45

Item 7a.



46

Item 7a.



47

Item 7a.



48

Item 7a.



49

Item 7a.



50

Item 7a.



51

Item 7a.



52

Item 7a.



53

Item 7a.



54

Item 7a.



55

Item 7a.



56

Item 7a.



57

Item 7a.



58

Item 7a.



59

Item 7a.



60

Item 7a.



61

Item 7a.



62

Item 7a.



63

Item 7a.



64

Item 7a.



65

Item 7a.



66

Item 7a.



67

Item 7a.



68

Item 7a.



69

Item 7a.



70

Item 7a.



71

Item 7a.



72

Item 7a.



73

Item 7a.



74

Item 7a.



75

Item 7a.



76

Item 7a.



77

Item 7a.



78

Item 7a.



79

Item 7a.



80

Item 7a.



81

Item 7a.



82

Item 7a.



83

Item 7a.



84

Item 7a.



85

Item 7a.



86

Item 7a.



87

Item 7a.



88

Item 7a.



89

Item 7a.



90

Item 7a.



91

Item 7a.



92

Item 7a.



93

Item 7a.



94

Item 7a.



95

Item 7a.



96

Item 7a.



97

Item 7a.



98

Item 7a.



99

Item 7a.



100

Item 7a.



101

Item 7a.



102

Item 7a.



103

Item 7a.



104

Item 7a.



105

Item 7a.



106

Item 7a.



107

Item 7a.



108

Item 7a.



109

Item 7a.



110

Item 7a.



111

Item 7a.



112

Item 7a.



113

Item 7a.



114

Item 7a.



115

Item 7a.



116

Item 7a.



117

Item 7a.



118

Item 7a.



119

Item 7a.



120

Item 7a.



121

Item 7a.



122

Item 7a.



123

Item 7a.



124

Item 7a.



125

Item 7a.



126

Item 7a.



127

Item 7a.



128

Item 7a.



129

Item 7a.



130

Item 7a.


	Top
	Item 3a.	Minutes
	2022.10.17 Minutes Regular
	2022.10.31 Minutes Work
	2022.10.31 Minutes SCM

	Item 5a.	Zoning a_Sontay
	Zoning a_Sontay
	Zoning a_Sontay Packet

	Item 5b.	Zoning b_Ivy Park
	Zoning b_Ivy Park
	Zoning b_Ivy Park Packet

	Item 7a.	Board Appointments
	Board Appt_

	Bottom

